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DEDICATION

We dedicate this history to you, the newcomer in Columbia.
You have moved here hoping to find a good life among the
country fields and country roads. Whether you have come
from a foreign land or a nearby city, there is much to learn
about and enjoy. We hope this book will help you know your

new home, perhaps understand it better — even, we hope, to
love it. }

This book is dedicated to the diversity of cultures you bring to
this small town. Each of you has something unique that en-
riches the lives of all of us. Early Columbia history does not
record this diversity because it did not exist then. Today
Columbia celebrates and we dedicate this slim volume to the

wide range of ethnic and cultural aspects of our beloved
community.

PREFACE

The Story of Columbia, written in 1954, tells us that “it is the
story of a beginning.” This book continues the story through

1992,

Almost forty years of Columbia history are more than memory-
crowded scrapbooks, photos, town reports, faded newspaper
clippings and conversations with town folk. How can one
who works on such a project not feel affection, satisfaction
and a sense of accomplishment in a job worth doing?

As a committee, we felt the same need experienced by the
small group of authors in the Women’s Guild who wrote The
Story of Columbia. It is the need to satisfy human curiosity, to
know what makes our community tick. It is our hope readers
may gain more insight into what has shaped Columbia since
1954. It's all told in this —

The Story of Columbia Continues ...



AUTHORS’ NOTE

As a group we set out to relate the history of Columbia from
1954 to 1992. In that history are certain people who had such
a monumental impact during this period they had to be men-
tioned. The naming of people was based on three criteria:
one, if the person was the first ever to hold a specific title or
position; two, if the person held a position or job for an inordi-
nate period of time; and three, if the person was honored by
having a building, site or location named for him or her. Some

of Columbia’s most prominent citizens had to be left out of the
official story.

If there are some whom readers feel ought to be mentioned
and are not — well, that's the nature of making choices.

The Committee

Anita F. Ramm, Chairman
Richard A. Curland
Marjorie F. Grant

Jean |. Peters

Gladys R. Soracchi
Noreen O. Steele
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THE GOVERNMENT

In December 1957 Eleanor Tuttle, Columbia correspondent
for the Hartford Courant, summed up the year: “Growth,
slow, steady and with its feet on the ground, would seem to be
the pattern of this community high up on the hill ... .” This
view of life in Columbia would have been appropriate for
most of the years between 1954 and today. However, al-
though the pace was slow, it was continuous. As the town
grew, town government expanded and became more struc-
tured.

In early 1969, little more than a decade after Mrs. Tuttle had
written this, a town charter
was proposed by the Board of
Selectmen, who wanted to
improve town government.
According to the charter itself, 3
“... the Town shall have all :
powers specifically granted by *
this charter and all powers
fairly implied in or incident to
the powers expressly granted
... ." After three years and
several false starts, the charter
was approved by the town
voters in November 1971 and
took effect on January 1,
1972. The charter continued
the selectmen/town meeting
form of government; however,
it gave more power to the
selectmen, especially the first
selectman. Selectmen were
empowered to fill all vacan-
cies, set up ordinances and
establish new commissions.

Columbia’s Official Signpost
A Modern Town Crier




This document sets forth terms of office; size and scope of all
town boards and commissions; procedures for town meetings;
duties and powers of all elected and appointed officials; and
rules and procedures for elections.

Since 1972 the town charter has been revised no fewer than
six times. Later revisions provided for a uniform fiscal year in
alignment with the state’s July 1 to June 30 fiscal year. Mod-
erators, once selected at each town meeting, became a panel
of three permanent town meeting moderators appointed for a
term of two years. Regulations pertaining to conflicts of inter-
est have been included as well as mechanisms for recall of
both elected and appointed officials.

Considered but not included in the first charter, a Finance
Board was established in the second version to oversee and
monitor town budgets and spending. Controversial from the
start, this board was replaced in the next revision with a
financial advisory board — the Financial Planning and Alloca-
tion Commission (FIPAC). According to a 1977 newspaper
account, this was “the first time any town in the state had
ousted a finance board.” Conflict between FIPAC and the
Board of Selectmen erupted from time to time. One of the
charges to the 1983 Charter Revision Committee was to define
clearly where each town agency’s responsibilities lie, espe-
cially FIPAC versus the selectmen. Today FIPAC reviews,
evaluates and modifies the proposed budgets of both the
Board of Selectmen and the Board of Education before pre-
senting them to the townspeople for a vote.

A safety commission, later renamed the Public Safety Commis-
sion, was established to “ensure the continued safety of the
Town'’s people.” In order to make it easier for firefighters and
police to find the appropriate house, the Commission urged
residents to place numbers on every house. In 1984 the select-
men rejected the idea of mandatory numbering, calling it
“Orwellian 1984 ... there’s a limit on what the government
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should do.” Today, however, almost all residents display their
house numbers on either their house or mailbox.

In a 1977 charter revision Columbia’s elected constapEes were
replaced with an appointed constabulary. In 1982 resEients
voted to hire a resident state trooper. They decided to “... see
what shapes up when the trooper is in place” before funding a
constabulary. The constabulary was never funded an(;l was
eventually eliminated from the charte_r. ?on_cernec? Wlth the
growing crime rate, the Safety Commission in conjunction
with the newly hired trooper inaugurated a Crime Watch

program.

Two newly appointed positions were added in the last few
years. In 1988 the first town planner, Mary Hocevar, was
appointed. The town planner is respo?yble for czoc_:rdmatmg
and overseeing the Planning and Zoning Commission, the
building official, the sanitarian and the Inlaple V‘ffetlands
Agency. De Ramm was appointed Columbia’s first town
historian in 1990 after the state legislature mandated every
town must appoint a municipal historian.

In 1879 a resolution was passed prahibiting‘ the_seiectmen
from granting licenses to sellers of intoxica_tmg I]guors. There-
after, no liquor was legally sold in Columbia until 1967. In
that year, after many unsuccessful trie_s, thg vo?ers approve_dh
licensing package stores and Columbia’s'ﬂrst liquor establish-
ment in 88 years was opened. No other Ilcer_lse was grapted
until 1984 when the town voted to expand licensing to in-
clude restaurants.

Early in 1961 representatives of the Lions Club met ?vith the
Board of Education to present a proposal of combining the
school nurse and public health nurse duties. By late 1‘9.62 a
pilot public nursing services program was formed which
included the towns of Columbia, Ashford and Lebanon (CAL).



By 1961 Democrats were able to elect Joseph Szegda the first

Today a variety of health-related programs for Columbia and Democratic first selectman. During the 1970s the number of
other towns in northeastern Connecticut are administered by registered Democrats continued to increase. By 1977 they
the Visiting Nurse and Community Health of Eastern Con- surpassed the number of registered Republicans, 707 to 646.
necticut, Inc. This organization, headquartered in Mansfield The number of independents also continued to rise, outnum-
Center, provides not only nursing services, but also.such home bering even the Democrats — 721 to 708 in 1978.

services as home health aides, homemakers and companions.

It oversees the Windham Hospice program which administers In fall 1991, of a total 2,743 registered voters, 788 were Re-
both hospice acute care as well as servicing homebound publicans, 1,040 were Democrats and 915 independent.

clients. This group also supports a number of health promo-
tion services and clinics. A Healthlink van travels the area
providing various screening programs.

The political make-up of Columbia was also in transition
during this period. In 1954 most voters belonged to the Re-
publican party. There were nearly as many independents but
few Democrats. Republicans held all major town offices.
Many had been reelected several times.

1959 proved to be a year of political upheaval. In 1959 Town
Clerk Hubert Collins retired after fifty years in that post. In the
same year Clair Robinson completed forty years as first select-
man and Henry Hutchins fifty years as second selectman.
Although there were 469 registered Republicans and only 132
registered Democrats, the town’s 422 independent voters
joined with Democrats to elect Philip H. Isham, Sr., town
clerk. Elected to the Board of Selectmen was Democrat Joseph
Szegda. Republican Clair Robinson was reelected by only
three votes!

Yeomans Hall and Town Offices
Constitution Oak planted 1902
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e e sl i when. Sy Selectmen requested an appropriation from the Board of Finance
Crats went to the state legislature to get a bill passed mandat- for a boat o patrol Columbia Lake. The reason given on the request
ing minority representation on all Columbia boards and com.- form, “Inability to walk on water makes a boat mandatory.”
missions. Local Republicans opposed the bill. This bill fajled ' : ‘

to become law when the legislature passed a broader bill News item October 1, 1977

mandating minority representation in all towns in Connecti- - -srr

Cut.



RELIGION

Religion continued to play an integral role in Columbia. In the
late 13505 and for a score of years following, a thinking,
guestioning generation evolved.

Globally, the Korean War and the controversial Vietnam
conflict ended. President John F. Kennedy was assassinated
and the Rev. Martin Luther King lost his life for a cause he
spearheaded — the civil rights movement. A Supreme Court
decision banning prayer in public schools became the law of
the land and Pope John XXIIl convened Vatican I, the first
ecumenical council in almost one hundred years.

Perhaps as a result of these and other factors, the World Book
Encyclopedia notes, “A surge of religious fervor erupted” — in
Columbia as elsewhere — “leading to a reinvigoration of
spiritual values.”

The Congregational Church

The Columbia Congregational Church, dating back to the year
172Q, Iooms_ on Columbia Green as the stalwart pillar of
religious activity for families both young and old. The present

church, erected in 1832, serves as a vital force in the commu-
nity.

In 1955 the expansion of church facilities was imperative.
Sunday School classes were being conducted in Yeomans
Hall, any available space in the Chapel and even in Moor’s
Indian Charity School. Church suppers, receptions and fairs
had to be held in Yeomans Hall.

The new Parish House, added to the east end of the church,
was I;egun in 1959 and dedicated in September 1960. It
consisted of a lounge, pastor’s study, kitchen facilities, an
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auditorium and classrooms on the lower floor. Exactly five
years later the mortgage was burned and the church was

declared debt-free.

Completed nearly thirty years later in 1990, a second story
was added over the parish house lobby, thus eliminating an
unsatisfactory flat roof and creating space for a meeting room,
pastor’s study and storage rooms.

The decade of the 1960s included spiritual, physical and
personal changes within the Congregational community.

Spiritually, due to the new Parish House, all Sunday School
classes were able to unite under one roof for worship services
then adjourn to individual classrooms for instruction. The
Church affiliated with the United Church of Christin 1961,
officially becoming the Columbia Congregational Church of
the United Church of Christ. Also youth groups — the Pilgrim
Fellowship and C-Teens — broadened their religious activi-
ties, forming a choir group, assisting with the building fund,
attending conferences, organizing a “Work Day for Christ”
and spreading Christian action to children all over the world
by overseeing the UNICEF Program (United Nations Interna-
tional Children’s Emergency Fund).

On a larger scale ecumenism reigned supreme. Catholic and
Jewish girls staffed the Congregational nursery on Christmas
and Easter holidays, enabling those of the Congregational faith
to attend services. Interfaith services were then and are still
today held on significant religious holy days.

Physically, parishioners were eager to renovate and update
their house of worship. A carillon donated by Homer Isham in
1964 in memory of his wife was installed to play taped hymns
daily at noon, 6:00 p.m. and before Sunday worship. During
1968-1969 the interior of the church underwent a major
renovation and modernization.

=



Significant in the history of the church during this period was
the retirement of Philip H. Isham, Sr., clerk of the church for
twenty-six years. As a personal token of appreciation the
assemblage presented Mr. Isham a parchment scroll.

A great experience of stimulation and renewal took place on

October 18, 1970 when the 250th anniversary of the founding

of Columbia Congregational Church was celebrated. More
Fhan 250 persons, many in period costumes, were ushered
into the church at 10:30 that Sunday morning, summoned not
by the usual church bell but by the beat of a drum. A
Tythingman rapped three times when all were in place, and
tf‘ne service proceeded, patterned after services of colon’ial
times. Once the service concluded and all had properly filed
out of the church, the congregation enjoyed a bean-hole
supper, entertainment by thirty Indians in full tribal regalia
dgncmg, hymn singing, a modern folk sing-along, movies ’
slides and a display of artifacts in the Chapel. Church mem-
ber; considered this celebration a humbling experience in
which they “paid respect to the past, gave thanks for the

present, and made plans to stride into the future with vigor
and courage.” '

Organizations within the church flourished during this period
and most are still active today. In addition to the Pilgrim
Fellowship and C-Teens, the Junior High Fellowship,
Everyman’s Fellowship for men (organized 1975), the Ladies
Aid Society and the Women’s Guild worked actively to assist
the church. The Ladies Aid Society disbanded in the 19705
and merged with the Guild. The latter is an industrious group
organizing fund-raising activities such as fairs and chicken
!::rarbecues, catering for organizations and receptions, furnish-
ing the lounge in the Parish House, providing monetary gifts to
home and foreign missions and sponsoring the Old Homes
Tour as part of the town’s Bicentennial Celebrations.
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In September 1987 the Rev. George K. Evans, minister of the
church since 1957, retired. Many a parishioner was sad as the
fourth longest pastorate in Columbia Congregational Church

history ended.

The history of Columbia must also surely include mention of
the Rev. George E. Peters, Jr., the first native of our town to be
ordained here since 1847. The event, which took place in
1973, brought a great feeling of pride to the local community.

Today the Columbia Congregational United Church of Christ
still maintains its awesome presence on Jonathan Trumbull
Highway, adjacent to the parsonage and in close proximity to
the Chapel. With a recorded membership of 346, there are
many to join in worship, church school and child care each

Sunday. A fellowship hour follows.

Congregation Agudath Achim

The Congregation Agudath Achim continues to serve the
Jewish population. The synagogue, built in 1952 at the junc-
tion of Route 87 and Latham Hill Road, is currently scheduled
for use only three times a year — on the high holy days of
Yom Kippur and Rosh Hashanah. An occasional funeral might
also necessitate building use. For these services a rabbi from

Hartford usually presides.

The Jewish community greatly decreased through the years
due to deaths and families moving out of state. Hebrew
School was abandoned in the 1960s for lack of students. At
present only twenty-two members are affiliated with the

synagogue.

In taking cognizance of the Jewish holidays each year, an
ancient Jewish blessing is invoked on the entire community:
“May you be inscribed, once again, in the book of life for a

GOOD new year.”
9.



A Parish Advisory Council was formed in the fall of 1973
Friday night Bingo games were initiated, area resident Pai:n'cia
D’Auteuil became St. Columba’s first salaried Religious Educa-
tion Coordinator, Midnight Mass on Christmas Eve was djs-
continued, ten acres of land on Route 85 in Hebron were
purf:hased in anticipation of future expansion and the entire
parish joined in participation in the town’s bicentennial
events.

By the middle 1970s it became apparent a religious education
center was badly needed. The church itself had two classes
meeting simultaneously on the upper level, while the confir-
mation class was being taught in the church hall. In addition
private homes, the elementary schools of Andover and ’
Hebron, RHAM High School and Horace W. Porter School
were all being used for church instructional purposes. A
change was clearly in order!

T_he parish was granted permission to proceed with the mas-
sive project of building a new facility. As the parishioners also
de5|re.d to build a new rectory for the residential priest, a
r_omblr}ed Rectory/Parish Center was designed. Construction
began in 1977 and the new structure was blessed by the Most
Rev. Daniel P. Reilly, Bishop of Norwich, on October 1, 1978
As local priests and parishioners inspected the new facifity -
they were pleased to note a bench in the vestibule of the ,
(?enter was one which had graced the altar of their little Mis-
sion church.

Ch:.ljrch _members, together with long-time parishioners and
senior citizens as special guests, helped to celebrate the
twenty-fifth anniversary of St. Columba Church on May 18
1980. Five years later, St. Columba’s twenty-fifth year as ar;
established parish was commemorated.

S

Many special groups have kept St. Columba’s a beehive of
activity through the years. The Catholic Youth Organization
(CYO), the Choirs, Altar Society, Youth Group, Folk Group,
Catholic Ladies Society, Holy Name Society, Knights of Co-
lumbus and the Parish Council have all contributed much to
parish life. Many of these groups are still in existence today.

In addition, the Christmas Fair and Raffle, conducted by the
Catholic Ladies Society, is anticipated each year, as is the
Three E’s — Exciting Ecumenical Experience. Originally a six-
week summer school activity sponsored jointly by St.
Columba’s and the Columbia Congregational Church, it is
presently a week-long summer Bible School program held for
young people each July. The Baptist Fellowship has also

hosted this event.

Census for 1992 reveals approximately 440 families affiliated
with the Parish of St. Columba. (This number reflects the
absence of Hebron parishioners, who are currently engaged in
the establishment of a new parish locally.) Daily masses are
held, in addition to two masses on Sunday, one on Saturday
evening and three on holy days. Religious education classes
are held three days a week in the Parish Center.

Jehovah’s Witnesses

A fourth religious group appeared in Columbia in September
1962 when the Jehovah’s Witnesses purchased a tract of land
on Route 6. Plans for this hillside property called for erecting a
one-story building, thirty-six feet wide by sixty-eight feet long,
including a full basement. The structure, commonly known as
a Kingdom Hall, was to include two auditoriums, a library,
congregation office, cloak room and literature storage space.

33-



Following the normal pattern of the Witnesses, the Kingdom
Hall was built using the skills and labor provided by members
of the congregation and neighboring congregations. As work
was performed largely on weekends, progress was slow but
s_teady. Funds for this endeavor came from members’ contribu-
tions and from fifteen-year bonds, paying three percent inter-
est, that the congregation sold to friends and neighbors. (It is
the policy of the Witnesses that funds not be raised through
suppers, sales or collections.) Local expenses are paid with
voluntary contributions, with the attitude “that each can do
just as he has resolved in his heart, not grudgingly or under
compulsion because God loves a cheerful giver.”

Five years later, the Kingdom Hall was dedicated on June 1,
1_968. The Hall is not a church as Witnesses do not believe in
ritual worship.

Located on Route 66 East (formerly Route 6), the original
congregation of seventy to eighty Witnesses has grown to
mclud_e two English-speaking congregations and one Spanish-
speaking congregation, or approximately four hundred Wit-
nesses from ten towns. At present eighteen people from Co-
lumbia are affiliated with the local congregations,

Activities at the Kingdom Hall include educational meetings
emphasizing Bible study and training for their public ministr;’.
The congregations are organized and governed theocratically
ﬁlollowmg the same pattern of operation established during thé
first century. Care for the Witnesses is provided by appointed
men, called Elders, who meet scriptural qualifications.

The local congregations are collectively part of the interna-

tional congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses, its world head-
quarters located in Brooklyn, New York.
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Baptist Fellowship

Reflecting the growing quest for religious expansion, a census
was taken in Columbia in 1965 to locate persons interested in

a Bible-preaching church.

Once the survey was completed and the results tabulated, the
small congregation was organized as a Mission. Services were
held at various locations in and around the Willimantic area.
One year later the Rev. Jack M. Schneider was called to be-

come the first full-time pastor.

In 1970 Lester and Grace Cooper donated land on the corner
of Route 6 and Roses Bridge Road for the long-awaited
church. Begun in 1971, the church measured ninety feet by
thirty-six feet and was made of cement blocks with a concrete
floor. During construction worship services were held in
Yeomans Hall and prayer meetings took place midweek in
private homes in the region.

Only 130 people attended the first Sunday morning service,
but attendance grew rapidly. The capacity of the building was
170 (over 200 if the porch was used) but one unforgettable
service had “standing room only with people sitting in the

aisles.”

Realizing the inadequacy of the structure, the Fellowship
expanded the facilities by adding a new building which would
seat 500 and serve as the main church. This building was

dedicated in 1978.

At present over one hundred families are enrolled in the
Baptist Fellowship which serves approximately twenty towns.
The Rev. Jack Schneider continues in his twenty-second year

as pastor in Columbia.

-15-



The Lighthouse Christian School is conducted on the premises
and features daily kindergarten classes and a nursery school
that meets three times a week. The Women'’s Missionary
Society and the Men’s Prayer Breakfast Group are active in the
church. Weekly Wednesday evening meetings are held for
Pioneers, Olympians, Junior High and High School groups. In
addition a Vacation Bible School is sponsored in conjunction
with other Columbia churches.

Using the slogan “We Preach Christ,” the Baptist Fellowship
conducts a morning and evening service each Sunday of the
year.

Houses of Worship

Bahaism

In early 1973 another religious group appeared briefly in
Columbia — Bahaism. Originally founded by a Persian
prophet who died a century ago, Baha'u’llah (meaning “Glory
of God”) held the major faiths were essentially the same, and
Bahaism was the crowning summation of them all.

i

At its inception in January 1973, the Bahai congregation had a
membership of two but their Bahai teachings spread. Written
materials informed the town that the people of the Bahai faith
are their own clergy, that children didn’t declare themselves to
the faith until age fifteen and that if there were nine or more
people over twenty-one years of age in their faith they would
constitute a Local Spiritual Assembly.

As the group expanded, religious meetings were held on a
regular basis the second and fourth Saturdays of each month,
usually in a member’s home. These meetings consisted mainly.
of discussions of their teachings.

Bahai gatherings were conducted in Columbia for two and
one-half years, but the group dissolved when the originating
family moved from town in summer 1975.

The Burning Bush

In March 1973 yet another religious light burned in Columbia.
For the first time in many years the beacon atop the “Light-
house” at the junction of Route 6 and Route 66 was aglow,
marking the birth of “The Burning Bush.”

Permits and application for the new endeavor stated the
building was to be used as a church and meeting hall. (“The
Bush” had formerly leased a building on Route 14 in
Windham, but it burned down the previous month.) Mr. John
Kimlingen served as lay minister-director of The Burning Bush,
an independent non-denominational organization operating in
the area for three years.

Young people from Columbia, Marlborough, Hebron,
Willimantic, New Britain, Meriden and Berlin worked dili-
gently to prepare the place for occupancy. Plans for The
Burning Bush called for four meetings a week, three of which

S



would be training sessions and on Fridays an evangelical
session. The building was to be open twenty-four hours a day
to provide a “hot line” with trained and untrained people
manning the phones and covering referrals. The group, gov-
erned by a four-man Board of Directors, was supported by
local churches, church groups and private donations.

Exactly one week after its birth here the light was extinguished
when Columbia’s building official stated, “All activity must
cease immediately until all requirements are met.”

After rethinking the situation, the thoroughly disheartened
group decided to renovate the burned out building in
Windham for temporary use. They eventually settled on
Hanover Road in Scotland, where The Burning Bush Chapel
still thrives today. No Columbia residents are members of the
present congregation.

The Orange Candle

As Columbia’s religious environment was expanding, recre-
ational life for the teenage population was suffering.

In late 1964 a chance remark by a teenager to the Rev.
George K. Evans, pastor of Columbia Congregational Church,
led to the realization that far too many teenagers had nothing
to do on weekends.

With the encouragement of the Rev. George K. Evans and the
Rev. John K. Honan, pastor of St. Columba’s, nine young
people gathered at the parish house of the Columbia Congre-
gational Church (occasionally at Yeomans Hall) to plan activi-
ties to fill this void. In January 1965 a coffeehouse for teenag-
ers — The Orange Candle — was born at the parish house.
Officially opening in May, the group rapidly expanded.

-18-

Early events continued to be held at the parish house of the
Congregational Church. Sponsored by the Congregational
Church’s Pilgrim Fellowship and St. Columba’s Catholic Youth
Organization, teenagers gathered on Saturday nights for an
evening of conversation, music and dancing. All those high
school age through twenty years old were welcome. All activi-
ties were chaperoned by parents and the pastors of the two
churches. Eventually the group became officially organized
and officers were elected.

The Orange Candle relocated to the old state highway on
Route 6A (now Route 66) just west of Columbia Center in June
1965. Mr. and Mrs. Peter Beckish, owners of the building,
generously leased it to the group for one dollar per year.
Excitement abounded! The accumulation of many years of
dust and dirt were cleared away by the ingenious teenagers
who also scrubbed, painted and even wired the building.
Large cable spools were used as tables, and soda bottle crates
served as chairs. A single orange candle adorned each table.
Over one hundred young people from all three religious youth
programs in town appeared at their new facilities on opening
night!

During the summer, dances were sponsored by The Orange
Candle. Often crowds of up to 250 people attended. Accord-
ing to Jeffrey Moeckel, first president of the group, “We are a
non-profit group. The purpose of this club is to keep the young
people off the street and give them a place to gather, espe-
cially during the summer when there is nothing doing and you
want a place of your own. We had no idea of earning money
when we began our summer dances, but they were so suc-
cessful and drew such large crowds that the small admission
fee we asked to pay the band accumulated far beyond any-
thing we dreamed of.”

-19-



Still under the umbrella of the two churches, The Orange
Candle continued into 1966, but for safety reasons their quar-
ters were moved to the Exhibition Hall on the Newton B.
Smith Field across from the Columbia Volunteer Fire Depart-
ment. As many as five constables were hired on a single night
to maintain the orderly, friendly atmosphere of the club. The
cost eventually became prohibitive for the teenage club and
activities ceased in August 1966.

Monies earned by the group were spent on an Appreciation
Dinner for their benefactors, Mr. and Mrs. Peter Beckish.
Remaining funds were distributed to Columbia Congregational
Church, St. Columba’s, Congregation of Agudath Achim, the
Saxton B. Little Free Library, Public Health Nursing Agency,
the World Championship Canoe Fund, Columbia Volunteer
Fire Department and Horace W. Porter School in the form of a
scholarship awarded annually to the graduate who contrib-
uted the most to the class and school. Joseph Tashlik, in
accepting the donation for the Synagogue, said, “This is such a
wonderful surprise. It shows brotherhood, just like the ten
commandments say.”

The Willimantic Chronicle aptly stated, “The Orange Candle
lighted a glow of good fellowship and fun which was felt for
miles around.”

The Mushroom

The last dying embers of The Orange Candle had barely
flickered out when in late 1968 a new group of high-school
age young people from the Pilgrim Fellowship met initiall
with the Rev. George Evans in the parish hall of the Columbia
Congregational Church. As the coffeehouse idea was the IN
thing across the country in the 1960s, the group adopted that
as its theme. They named their club “The Mushroom.”

-20-
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Much of the continuing organizational work was dor}e under
the tutelage of Willimantic pastors from St. Paul’s Episcopal
Church and the First Methodist Church. Group chairmen were

elected and duties assigned.

Opening night occurred in February 1969. The teens bor-
rowed the facilities of Noble School gymnasium in
willimantic for this first endeavor and their peers eagerly
responded. Subsequent activities were held at the Willimantic

YMCA.

Eventually The Mushroom was fortunate enough to locate a
building in Columbia on Route 66 East (formerly Route 6)
which they cleaned and painted for their use. Today this
building houses a flooring and carpeting company.

Little has been recorded regarding further activities of The
Mushroom. It is presumed the coffeehouse existed in its casual
atmosphere of friendliness for approximately two years. Repli-
cating The Orange Candle, any monies realized from their
functions were used for philanthropic purposes.

Principal Bans Lipstick, School Dating

The Horace W. Porter School principal banned lipstick during
school hours. He said that many girls just weren't well informed
on how to apply lipstick. They put it on too lavishly. “It just isn‘t
conducive to good taste.” The principal also asked parents to see

that children attend the school’s evening dances individually

and not in pairs. He said that there will be many chances to
enjoy dating in high school “without having us stress such social

amenities now.”

news item November 2, 1956
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EDUCATION

From space shortages to space shuttles, from rural services to
recycling awards, from PTA and PTO to CBS and ABC and
from co-op kindergarten to computers — from all this, one can
assume many changes have occurred since 1954 in Columbia
education.

In mid-summer 1954 a co-operative kindergarten was being
considered for Columbia children, as well as those from
nearby communities. By the end of August officers had been
chosen, committees were established, equipment assembled
and a full registration achieved.

In December the Columbia Co-operative Kindergarten, lo-
cated near the north end of the Green, had an open house for
the eighteen enrolled students. By early 1957 there were still
no kindergarten classes at Horace W. Porter School and the
co-operative kindergarten officers had to consider double
sessions. In April 1961 thirty children were registered for the
co-op’s 1961-62 school year. In that year the kindergarten
moved its location to a cottage on Columbia Lake. In 1966 the
kindergarten became part of the public school.

When the Horace W. Porter School opened in 1948 it housed
150 students. During the fifties space shortages were evident.

The town decided to build a new school addition which was

completed in 1958.

The 1960s brought changes such as the hiring of the first art
instructor and departmentalization at the junior high level. A
new title for the on-site school administrator, Assistant Super-
intendent/Principal, was created. The 1960s also saw a sex
and family life education program introduced and the staff
additions of a school psychologist and social worker.

9%
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As the town grew the school grew and another school addi-

tion was built which included ten new rooms plus a multi-
urpose room and two kindergarten rooms. With this newest

addition the school now had twenty-four classrooms.

Fleet of School Buses
Symbol of Growth

The 1970s brought immediate and profound changes. Up to
this point, Columbia’s school system had been a participant
in the Rural Supervisory Field Services of the State Depart-
ment of Education. The service was popularly known as the
rural service, assisting small towns by providing a part-time
superintendent. In 1971 the service was discontinued in
Columbia because the number of teachers employed at
Horace W. Porter School exceeded the maximum number
allowed to receive this service. Since then Columbia has had
its own part-time or full-time superintendent of schools.

Another significant change of the 1970s was the relaxing of
the dress code. Girls were allowed to wear slacks to classes!
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By the early 1970s the Board of Education’s business had
become so lengthy the board decided to meet twice monthly
instead of the traditional once per month.

Other educational activities during this decade included
Porter School’s involvement in Connecticut’s “Right to Read”
program, portable classrooms added to accommodate special
education programs, teacher in-service days called “Thinking
Thursdays” and the naming of the Donald R. Tuttle Gymna-
sium in honor of Mr. Tuttle, Chairman of the Board of Educa-
tion since 1947. A summer school program was established,
the PTO replaced the PTA, a gifted program for selected
students began and the new Windham High School was
dedicated.

The 1980s saw weight-training classes at Porter School, the
hiring of a Pupil Personnel Services Coordinator, a new con-
sumer home economics course, computer use in remedial
reading and math, elective French and pre-school health
screening. Administrators were now faced with problems
relating to drugs and alcohol.

In 1983 it was noted some Columbia seniors at Windham
High School were taking courses at Eastern Connecticut State
University since they had completed credits for high school at
the end of their junior year.

Also in that year the Eastern Connecticut Regional Educational
Service Center (EASTCONN) began its Secondary Pro-Active
Education Program for students in grades 8-12. This is an
alternative school for selected youngsters. The school is lo-
cated near the junction of Routes 6 and 66.

In 1980 three rooms at Porter School were closed for asbestos
removal. In 1984 the State of Connecticut pressed the Colum-
bia Board of Education to meet the Minimum Expenditure
Requirement since Columbia was the only town in the state
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that did not meet requirements. The Board then decided to
spend the required dollars ($225,000) on computers, materials
and carpeting in order to meet requirements.

Issues in the late eighties which reflected the times included
the establishment of the Columbia Council on the Prevention
of Drug & Alcohol Abuse and the opening of EASTCONN's
Early Childhood Center on Commerce Drive in Columbia. The
purpose of the Center was to provide a community day care
program for young children with special needs.

Horace W. Porter School’s cafeteria recycling efforts made
TV’s CBS and ABC news programs in 1989 and received a
commendation from Governor William O’Neill. Students at
the school had begun the first elementary school-based plas-
tics recycling program in the state.

In the same year the Columbia Board of Education adepted a
stricter policy concerning drug, alcohol and tobacco restric-
tions on school property, designated a faculty smoking area
and spelled out violation penalties.
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Horace W. Porter School demonstrated its ability with techni-
cal topics in 1990 when fourth graders almost made contact
with the Columbia space shuttle via ham radio equipment.
Despite weeksof planning on everyone’s part, communica-
tions closed down before prepared questions could be asked.
Although disappointed, students did learn a great deal in the
process. This included organization and communication skills,
the making of videos, knowledge of newspaper publishing,
research skills and interviewing tips. The most practical lesson
students learned was that not everything in life goes according
to plan.

With the beginning of school in fall 1992, secondary students
could choose between Lyman Memorial High School and
Windham High School as designated high schools.

No chapter on education in Columbia would be complete
without the mention of one man whose on-site experience
covered much of this period. George H. Patros came to
Horace W. Porter School in the fall of 1950 as a classroom
teacher in grades six and seven. The consolidated school
building was less than two years old!

Mr. Patros became supervising principal in 1953 when there
were ten teachers on the staff and an enrollment of 253. Mr.
Patros held that title through 1966, at which time he was
named assistant superintendent/principal. During his tenure
the school grew from ten rooms to twenty-four rooms, he
supervised three school building programs and saw the enroll-
ment increase to 603 students.

George Patros left Columbia’s school system in 1969 to con-

tinue a distinguished career in education as a superintendent
in area towns.
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PLACES OF INTEREST

Buildings and places make up the backbone of any town.
Columbia has many interesting and useful locations, some
developed recently, some very old.

They all change and adapt as the town and its population
grow. A look at a few of these sites can tell us a great deal
about Columbia’s development.

Yeomans Hall

The need for expansion was also felt by town officials. There
was no central office until 1960 — offices were located and
records were kept in various private homes. After the retire-
ment of Hubert P. Collins, a small basement room (with a
vault) in Yeomans Hall served as the town clerk’s office until
December 1971.

A building committee worked from January 1966 until Octo-
ber 1969 to bring numerous proposals to town meetings for
consideration. Whether to expand or remodel Yeomans Hall
or to build a separate building somewhere on “Columbia
Campus” — no one could decide what to do. Then a town
meeting vote discharged this committee with the call to name
another committee. With new members on board, on March
11, 1970, the voters approved spending $60,000 for an office
building annexation to Yeomans Hall.

By December 1970 the footings for the Yeomans Hall addition
were in and construction started, but only after the building
had been put out to bid several times.

Success was realized in February 1972. At an open house the
citizens saw the new office building containing all town

offices under a single roof for the first time. Since then paint-
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ing, new siding, a roof, septic system, well, oil tank and com-
plete renovation of the lower section of Yeomans Hall have
kept the heart of the town humming.

The Freedom of Information Act, in effect in 1975, also played
a part in the town effort to get all records, including those of
committees and commissions, into a central place and out of
private homes.

In the 1980s there was evidently a need for more work area
for the expanded services demanded of the government and a
fast-growing town. In 1987 a conference room was carved
into office workstations, creating seven offices and a central
all-purpose room for a computer, copier and lunch area. The
coatroom in Yeomans Hall was converted into the social
services office and the old town clerk’s office is shared by the
resident trooper and fire marshal.

With the necessity to make the building accessible to the
disabled, a carrier lift was installed, the sidewalk was ramped
and a safety railing placed.

The town clerk is now feeling the squeeze for vault space
even though record books are smaller and easier to store.
With continued town development creating more mapping
and records, it is only a matter of time before more space will

be needed.

The Green

The next time there is a concert on the Green (summer eve-
nings, sponsored by the Columbia Council on the Arts —
jazz, barbershop, marching bands!), go a little early and walk
around. Try to picture it as it was not so many years ago — the
roads are dirt paths, phone and electric wires are not yet
strung everywhere, cattle and sheep graze on the sward, the
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pace of people going about their business is slower and traffic
minimal. A stone wall runs from the Wheelock hgmestead to
the Congregational Church along the Green’s inside bound-
ary. A barberry hedge skirts Route 87 marking that edge.

Since that time there have been many changes. Roads have
been shifted several times. Churches, the town hall and the
indian school have been moved or replaced. The library has
been relocated. In 1968 three large elms, affected by Dutch
elm disease, were removed. One was more than 125 years

old!

Memorial to Russell Bagshaw
Fallen Hero
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Still, the Green remains, as it has since the early days of the
town’s settlement, the center of Columbia’s activity. Churches,
inn, library, Yeomans Hall, school and stores all cluster
around the center. Parades start in this area. Boy Scouts and
Girl Scouts gather. Town meetings bring out the citizenry.

The bicentennial year of 1976 saw the Green cleared of old
trees and new plantings were begun. The Lions Club planted a
row of maple trees parallel to Route 87 to celebrate the
country’s birthday. Later they built the Gazebo which since
1988 has been the scene of weddings — one in a blinding
snow storm in 1992! The Council on the Arts sponsors well-
attended exhibits at the Chapel on the Green Gallery. There
are several memorials placed on the Green. Veterans of World
War | are honored by a plaque at the crossroads and the
names of World War I veterans are listed on a granite stone in
front of Yeomans Hall.

PHIRTRPLSA S

Recently a memorial to State Police Trooper Rgsseli Bagshaw,
killed in the line of duty, was added. A memc-_nal stone for
Eleazor Wheelock is in front of the Congrggatlonal Church:
Veterans of the Korean and Vietnam conflicts are honored in
listings on plaques in the town hall. The Green’s four-plus
acres were designated a state Historic District in 1990.

The Landmark

The Landmark, an old inn, was originally a stage coach stop
on the Norwich to Hartford run. Then for years it was run by
the Squier family as a small general store, where men Io_ved to
gather around the pot-bellied stove and gossip. The family
also lived in the inn.

Gazebo on the Green
Another Lions Club Contribution to the Community

-30-

A Passing Scene
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In 1962 the Squiers sold the inn to Peter Beckish who peti-
tioned the Zoning Board to allow a drug store with a soda
fountain. The grand opening came in August when the public
was invited to tour both the store and other areas of the old
building. Since then the inn has had several owners and has
housed several businesses — a real estate office, beauty par-
lor, restaurant, gift shop and a health spa.

The Town Dump

We've gone from the “Dump” to the “Sanitary Landfill,” but
it’s still THE PLACE to go on a Saturday morning. Many re-
member the area at Katzman'’s Corner, where “picking” was
allowed and treasures found. By 1966 this old dump had been
leveled off and cleared and the new area at Doubleday Road
was in operation. New state regulations in 1967 changed this

Town Garage
Headquarters of Public Works Department
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area from an open face dump to a sanitary landfill, making it
necessary to purchase heavy equipment to do the work. High
water levels and lack of filling materials made the Doubleday
Road area obsolete by 1971, so a 20 acre state-owned parcel
off Route 6 was bought in 1974 for $37,100. The gravel banks
+ contained were ideal for fill and it was estimated the area
would last until 1991. Indeed, there also was space for a new
Town Garage — built in 1977 for $32,000 (for a mere $10.67
a square foot)! The Dog Pound, previously located at the dog
warden’s home, was added in the same area.

soon concerns for the environment developed and terms such
as “hazardous waste” were heard. The Lions Club embarked
on a glass-crushing operation, tests were done for toxic run-off
and tipping fees for commercial users were initiated. Patrons
of the landfill became used to separating paper, metal and
plastic and making the rounds to the various dump “stations.”

With the landfill about to be closed, the next step is unclear.
Tomorrow’s garbage and recyclables will have to find a new
home.

The Post Office

Those who remember when the post office was a niche in
Smith’s General Store know how easy it was to mail a package
and buy a steak in the same place. The first post office in
Columbia was established in 1816 and moved into the store in
about 1900. When it first opened the town population was
about 650. In 1959 there were more than 2,000 people in
town and the space in the store proved too small. So the new
building at the corner of Route 6A (now Route 66) and
Firehouse Road (now Schoolhouse Lane) was constructed. The
post office opened in its new home in time for the Christmas
rush of 1959. It still serves the community well.
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Neither snow nor rain . . .
Our Post Office since 1959

The Recreation Area

Fondly known as “Rec Field,” the area on Hennequin Road
filled a need felt as early as 1960. When the ballfields at
Fireman’s Field and Katzman's Corner became crowded, the
Recreation Council cited the need for a new permanent area.
After much ado deciding on a site, the Tannenbaum property
was purchased for $20,000 in June 1963. A committee was
named to study the development of the seventy acres.

Over the next few years a road into the area was made, a well
was dug, latrines were built and several ballfields were estab-
lished. Much volunteer work, many contributions and town
funds made this beginning possible.

In 1968 the Lions Club volunteered funds to build a hockey
rink for the growing youth hockey teams. Even the National
Guard was involved in this development, using heavy equip-
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ment for the project. Many hours of volunteer labor and many
donations of material resulted in a hockey rink used by resi-

dents from six to sixty.

Besides hockey, figure skating was taught and the rink was
open to the public for free skating. Eventually the rink was
abandoned because it could not retain water. This coincided
with a series of warm winters when the ice didn’t hold. Today
Columbia hockey is played at the UConn rink where many
from town participate.

In 1966-67 a hard top area was added at the field for tennis
and basketball. Pine trees at the end of the area were planted
in memory of Douglas Tettelbach. More ballfields were built

as needed.

1974 saw the dedication ceremony of the Jerry Dunnack Colt
Field, attended by 200 players Jerry had coached. The
scoreboard is dedicated to the memory of Tommy Spector.
The Senior Girl Scouts blazed a trail named in honor of
Wilbur Fletcher.

In 1977 the Lions Club oversaw the building of the open-air
pavilion, later christened the William “Buzz” Burnham Memo-
rial Pavilion. A new Little League field was added in 1978 and
in 1981, concession stands and toilets. 1983 brought soccer
and softball fields.

After fund-raising activities raised $48,000, a citizens’ group
erected the Playscape, the crowning touch to a recreation area
that brings pride to the whole town. Today, besides a wide
array of organized sports, the area is used for aerobic exercise
classes, private picnics, hiking, town-wide gatherings and
more.
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Playscape at Recreation Park
A Favorite Spot: Effort of Many

Moor’s Indian Charity School

When the small white building in the center of town was
moved in 1948 to make way for the new consolidated Horace
W. Porter School, it was the fourth time the building was
given a new home — and, it was hoped, the last. The build-
ing, under the jurisdiction of the Board of Education, was used
for a variety of educational purposes. Over the years the
school was a classroom, a library, a music room and a nursery
school.

In 1966, when the Columbia Historical Society was formed, it
was given use of the school for its activities and memorabilia
storage. The society accepted responsibility for preserving the
school provided the town made any major repairs. In 1991 a
team of experts began extensive preservation work. Sills were
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restored, a chimney removed and rotted clapboards replaced
with quarter-sawn white pine.

In 1969 the school and Columbia came into prominence
when Dartmouth College celebrated its 200th anniversary.
The kick-off event took place in Columbia in cooperation with
the college, the Connecticut Dartmouth Alumni.Association,
the town and the Columbia Historical Society. Alumni and
friends came to town to hear speeches by college officials,
attend concerts, and see an exhibit from the Tantaquidgeon
Indian Museum. That day the school and the Green were
dubbed “Columbia Campus” and a plaque was placed in front
of the school indicating its importance. Since 1966 many
open house programs have been held at the school by the
Historical Society and a number of Porter School classes have
visited and held old-time school days in the building. The
Indian school is featured on our town seal, adopted in 1976 as
part of the country’s bicentennial celebration.

Columbia Lake and the Beach

Despite the 1976 pronouncement by the New England Coun-
cil of Water Center Directors that Columbia Lake is really only
a “pond,” residents of Columbia feel otherwise. Created by the
American Linen Company in 1865 and purchased by the town
in 1933, Columbia Lake covers 282 acres and averages a
depth of seventeen feet. The deepest measurement is at the
dam where it is twenty-seven feet.

Although many seasonal cottages remain, a majority of homes
around the lake are now year-round. Commercial ventures of
the past — small stores, boarding homes and a guest resort
called “The Pasture” — have been closed and are no longer
permitted by zoning.
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In 1957 the town spent $7,000 to purchase 180 feet of water-
front property adjacent to the road-width scrap of beach
already owned by the town. It adjoined Sandy Beach, a com-
mercial beach run by the LaFleur family. Townspeople were
delighted to have this special area. The local Grange was
quick to undertake area development and improvement as
their entry in a National Grange Community Improvement |
Project. The Recreation Council went to work with the Grange
committee. The first work session was scheduled on an early
spring day. Women were asked to bring a picnic lunch.

Since then many improvements have been made. The Lions
Club built a beach house with refreshment stand and toilets. A
new T-shaped dock with docking facilities for fourteen boats
was presented to the town by Kirby Tappen. A boat launch
area, a picnic area, swings and boat moorings were added.
Other changes were made — the raft was removed, a ski
launch area was tried and abandoned, permanent moorings
(awarded by lottery) were established and the lifeguard staff
was increased.

o P TR

Columbia’s Mermaids
An Aquacade from the early '60s
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Each year many Columbia children benefit from the YMCA
swimming lessons. For many years the responsibility of the
Rec Council and the Red Cross, the lessons are offered on
summer mornings at the beach.

The Community Beach was enhanced considerably in 1990
with the $315,000 purchase of the “Murphy property,” built
many years ago as a boarding house. This not only adds
acreage to the area, but allows a larger number of community
people to use the beach at any one time.

An area of lakefront on Erdoni Road, which comes very close
to the road, has been used by nearby residents and others as a
swimming area for many years. Attempts to restrict this area
were difficult to enforce. A final compromise to allow swim-
ming was reached in 1989 with the stipulation there would be
no lifeguard, no boat launching and no parking at the site,

In the fifties and before, sailboat racing was a great sport on
the lake, with ten or more Lightnings and as many Comets out
every Sunday when weather allowed. By 1990 there were
only two Lightnings left on the lake as the Sunfish class be-
came the most prominent. Over the years increasing numbers
of power boats appeared on the water; skiing and tubing also
became very popular. The Lake Management Committee is -
concerned with boating safety and works with the selectmen
and the marine patrol officers to enforce boating restrictions.

Protection of Columbia Lake water quality remains a concern.
During the summer of 1976 a New England Council of Water
Center Directors research team studied the lake and pointed
out signs the lake was becoming eutrophic. Annual algae
bloom:s, fish kills and high coliform counts were harbingers of
what might come. Lakeside construction may be hurting the
lake. In June 1977 the local director of health condemned five
cottages near the lake inlet for septic leakage. The cottages
were demolished. A sign of increasing year-round population
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was the warning in 1979 that although the water was still fine,
“watch the nutrient flow.”

The lake is described poetically as a place for picturesque
sailboats and national canoe regattas. Children learn to swim
at the water’s edge. Fish, big and small (including a couple of
overgrown goldfish!) are hooked or evade the fisherman’s
lure. Families skate on large stretches of smooth ice on a
bright sunny winter weekend. Columbia’s “old smoothies,”
Ray and Junie Squier (when well into their seventies) enjoyed
an annual, graceful skating outing on the winter ice. Boatloads
of listeners drifted at twilight to hear barbershop choruses
harmonize from the porch of a home on the east shore. We
watch the sunset paint the sky and water at day’s end and we
KNOW — it IS a lake.

The Saxton B. Little Library

The old Saxton B. Little Free Library was a sad seventy-six
years old in 1979. Its shelves were too limited for the growing
town, there was neither running water nor restrooms, the heat
was cranky at best and the building violated fire codes.

As with other structures in town, again came the question —
renovate, build a new building or use some other building? A
house-to-house survey was done and a Library Building Com-
mittee established. After a number of referendums, town
meetings, petitions and four years of hard bargaining, the town
voted to construct the new library at the site of the Rice home-
stead, saving as much as possible of the colonial house. The
new Saxton B. Little Free Library, built for $472,000, was
opened on November 24, 1985, with ribbon cutting and great

Moving Day
Library to Library and Hand to Hand
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Saxton B. Little Free Library
A third Home
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excitement. The move was a town affair with more than one
hundred volunteers forming a human chain, passing the
collections across the street and reshelving them in their new
home.

The Board of Directors of the Library leases its quarters from
the town for one dollar per year and operates the facility with
town monies, state grants, private donations, income from
funds and memorials and the help of an active Friends of the
Library organization.

Today, in 1992, the library boasts a list of 3,000 patrons, a
collection of 20,000 volumes, magazines, audio and video
materials, computer facilities and more. Its circulation system
is automated so inventory management and services are
efficient for staff and patrons.

In December 1990 the old library building was renamed The
Meeting Place. It was transformed under the devoted guidance
of George Peters when the Library Board donated the building
to the town and the town funded its reconstruction. It can be
used by any town group by reserving it at the Town Hall.

Cemeteries

There are three cemeteries in Columbia. The oldest, The Old
Yard Cemetery, is adjacent to St. Columba’s church and is no
longer used. The oldest grave there is dated in the early 1700s
and veterans of the Revolution, as well as other citizens of
long ago, are buried in its field.

The West Street Cemetery at the top of Utley Hill is overseen
by the West Street Burying Ground Association. An addition of
land in 1964 brought the area of this cemetery to one and
one-half acres. The gate was widened and walls rebuilt.

AP

The third cemetery, known as the Center Cemetery, is cared
for by The Columbia Burying Ground Association. It is -1ocated
behind The Meeting Place. In 1958 the Columbia Burying
Ground Association purchased approximately ten acres for
future use on the east side of Route 6 near the Andover line.

Memorial Day Observance
“Ray” Lyman — an unforgettable figure for over 50 years

On Memorial Day all three cemeteries are visited by residents
of the town and with help from Girl Scouts and Boy Scouts,
respects are paid to former citizens. Taps is played, flf)wers
laid and poetry read. Flags are placed on all veterans’ graves.

Camp Asto Wamah

Tucked away in a western corner of Columbia Lake and far
away from the main road, Camp Asto Wamah may be some-
thing of a mystery to many residents — unless they have heard
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jet engine manufacturers, it has world-wide involvements in
its field.

Other establishments include a general store, gas stations,
garages, an antique store, restaurants, beauty parlors, an oil
company and a farm supply store. Columbia’s first bank was
Citizens Bank in 1974. Since then the building has been
occupied by Connecticut Bank and Trust and the Savings
Bank of Manchester, which opened in August 1991. There are
also approximately 64 home-based businesses.
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Something to Crow About: Part |

Principal George Patros of Porter School has something to crow
about. So friendly he must be someone’s pet, a crow keeps flying in,
sitting on teachers’ and children’s heads and shoulders and pecking

away at ears and hair. One classroom was “evacuated” when the
bird panicked and started dive-bombing in all directions. “He has to
go — one way or the other,” Patros said. He’d like the owner to take

the bird in hand.

news item QOctober 22, 1960
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Something to Crow About: Part Il
The Porter School’s crow, back after a weekend'’s rest, is what
school authorities might call an all-around bird. Not only does the
black feathered bird-brain visit classes on a regular basis, he (or she)
has taken to extra-curriculars. In the true “feather-flocking” fashion,
the crow has taken up foul catching. When baseballs get stuck on
the roof, the crow has been seen to peck at them until they roll
' down. .

news item November 27, 1960
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DEVELOPMENT

Few things remain static. We can probe what is written ab
our past apd learn what we can from those who rememb .
Welcliwe with what we have become. The future remaiTs g‘b
]rno led anfi melded with the past. It is a delicate and chal i
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i — at $2,030,027 — had just go
1e1 gv;o njllhon dollar mark for the first time. Foriy yegar:Ta?ver
1 1991, it was up to more than $132,000,000. "
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i ;ne(j. I;Iorse_ and wagon, trains from one of the two sta-
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; fo : : enties, one coul
;?Cseohmtéra?splortation from Columbia’s very own taxi ‘
fun Dy Leslie Hill. Plans in 1968

‘ : to sell a portion of a
E)iirlg!;j—of-way of the former “Airline Brancﬁ” of the
s ?w Haven and Hartford Railroad at Chestnut Hill

ght nostalgia for the two railroad lines that once served
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the town. As the railroads declined, highways were expanded
to accommodate growing numbers of automobiles.

Roads and highways are interrelated with growth and devel-
opment. Three state highways traverse Columbia. Route 6,
sometimes called Andover-Willimantic Road, follows the Hop
River along the northeast border of town. Jonathan Trumbull
Highway (Route 87) and Middletown Road (Route 66) inter-
sect at Columbia Center. Route 87 has a treacherous curve
near Columbia Lake dam. In the late 1960s, the State Highway
Department obtained legislation and a $600,000 appropria-
tion to change the roadbed at that point. The proposed change
would have been very invasive for area residents and would
have threatened a hoped-for preservation and expansion of
the ravine area by the Columbia Historical Society. For these
reasons, the selectmen in January 1969 voted to “bow to the
mandate of the people” and ask the legislature to rescind the
project and return the appropriation. In March of 1969, fifty
Columbia residents traveled to Hartford to back this request.
The project was abandoned in May.

At about this time Route 6, with its curves and intersections,
was becoming more and more congested and serious acci-
dents were occurring too frequently. By 1968 plans for relo-
cating and upgrading Route 6 were on file. Nearly twenty-five
years after initial planning, relocation of the remaining section
of Route 6 running northwest to Bolton Notch is still in the
planning stage with four rerouting proposals under consider-
ation as of this writing.

Route 66 also had hazardous sites. Folks can remember when
a small traffic rotary and later two-way stop signs funneled
traffic through Columbia Center. Short median strips on Route
87 and a traffic light now handle the flow. Another dangerous
place was the intersection of Route 66 with Pine Street and
Hennequin Road. Requests to the State Highway Department
to install a flashing traffic light at this intersection were denied.
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\ safety study indicated the need for the light, the decision
vas reversed and approval for the light was granted.

Signs of the Times

wn roads were added as residential subdivisions carved up
lumbia’s farm and forest lands. In earlier years the select-
n were directed by vote of a duly-warned town meeting to
‘ept as public highway any private road. Today developers
nting to subdivide a tract of land must, according to town
les, first lay out and build necessary roads. At least two

dF ‘iaid out for earlier subdivisions did not originally meet
cnfications and were not accepted for some time. Such a
ation meant inconvenient mail delivery and school bus
<ups, lack of snow plowing, etc. More than thirty new
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town roads ranging from “Bears Den Way” to “Yeomans
Road” were added in the past forty years.

As the number of roads increased and other public property
needed maintenance, it was necessary to hire the town’s first
director of public works, Peter Naumec.

Town officials met with the Windham Regional Planning
Agency to discuss town planning in early 1976 and learned
that Route 87, Lake Road, West Street and Robinson Road
were designated scenic routes. The forecast was an historic
district would someday extend from the center of town to
Columbia Lake. -

After World War Il Columbia’s character began to change
rapidly from rural to suburban. Whereas residential homesites
of a century ago were nearly all farms, today there are only
three working farms. Most of today’s residents do not work in
Columbia but choose to live here in retirement or commit to a
daily commute. Housing growth has been rather remarkable.
The number of housing units grew from 1,107 in 1970 to a
peak of 1,533 during the housing boom of the mid-eighties.
The largest subdivision — seven new town roads and 112 new
homes — is the Island Woods development near Mono Pond.
More than forty subdivisions now appear in the town records.

Dartmouth Village is the town’s first housing complex for the
elderly and disabled. It contains twenty-four apartment units
and some common areas. A long waiting list attests to the
need for these homes.
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Dartmouth Village

lere has been some commercial and manufacturing develop-
ent along Route 6, in the Cards Mill Road area, on Route 66,
d at the center of town where business continues from pre-
ning days. The Columbia Shopping Center on Route 66 and
lumbia Business Park house a variety of businesses and
dfessional offices. The garage, market and Inn are enter-

ses of long standing at Columbia Center,

veral proposed projects were not realized for one reason or
other. A proposed outdoor theater at the intersection of
utes 6 and 66 in 1951 was a subject of controversy at a
blic hearing. A proposal to construct a pet crematory in

84 was rejected. In late 1976 a plan to build a private
rtsmen’s retreat called the “400 Club” in the Mono Pond
:a was proposed but never realized. This property was

ered to the town the following year but was passed over
cause of a lack of state financing. The property was subse-
ently developed as Island Woods.
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A five-hundred home exclusive development was proposed in
the Post Hill area in the mid-1980s. The project was to be
called the Columbia Club and was planned to include golf
courses, an equestrian center and commercial center. It would
have required zoning changes to allow planned area develop-
ment. Residents in the area who did not welcome the proposal
organized as “Concerned Citizens of Columbia” to oppose the
concept. Although little has been heard conceming the pro-
posal recently, zoning changes have not yet been made to
permit this type of development.

After three years of work a new set of subdivision regulations
went into effect late in 1992. One new feature allows a poten-
tial developer to submit a preliminary plan for review, afford-
ing an opportunity to clear up potential problems early in the
process.

Regulatory guidelines for development are needed to control
the town’s growth. Zoning regulations came into effect soon
after World War Il and were updated several times. These
regulations are formulated and administered by the Planning
and Zoning Commission. There also are requirements of the
Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Regulations adopted in
1989.

The town’s first Plan of Development was adopted during the
1991-92 fiscal year. It includes an overview of Columbia’s
growth and an outline of a growth plan for the future.

Regulatory agencies of the town which govern development
include the Planning and Zoning Commission, Building Code
Board of Appeals, Zoning Board of Appeals and the Inland
Wetlands Commission. Town employees who administer the
regulations include the town planner and zoning enforcement
officer, building official and town sanitarian.
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ENVIRONMENT & CONSERVATION

‘en as our environment was becoming a national concern,
lks in Columbia were already thinking about this land of our
rritage.

ir example, in the late 1950s the Tolland County Conserva-
n Service was working with the U.S. Soil Conservation
rvice to help four local farmers plan a farmland drainage
oject near the Ten Mile River.

the spring of 1967, as well as in many subsequent years, a
wn-wide “Rid Litter Day” was organized and pronounced an
tstanding success. Roadsides, the town beach area and

1er public areas were cleaned of litter. Even the town hall
chen was scoured and cleaned. In 1970, the selectmen
signated April 22 as “Environmental Action Day.” School-
ildren became involved in the 1970 “Earth Day” when fifth
1ders asked President Nixon and Governor Dempsey to

peal for pollution cleanup. Spring 1991 saw Columbia’s first
dopt-a-Road” program with volunteers assigned to cover the
vn and fill their trash bags with roadside litter.

early spring 1968, the Public Health Nursing Agency be-
me concerned about an escalating odor problem from the
nnecticut Bi-products Company, a subsidiary of a

llimantic poultry processing plant. It was most unpleasant
nearby residents on Route 6. By late summer, area resi-

nts organized, calling themselves the Hop River Valley
provement Association. They threatened to “storm the

ice” of the state health commissioner in protest at lack of
)gress in cleaning up the mess at the plant. Within days, it

s announced that the bi-products plant would close by
vember 1 and local residents were soon “breathing easier.”
2 problem, however, had not really disappeared. In summer
76, a representative of the association took reporters on a

ir of the building and grounds of the former plant. Although
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the site was actually in Coventry, it was very close to homes in
Columbia. After going bankrupt, the factory had been vacated
and abandoned in about 1971, leaving behind cement pits
half full of filthy water, weeds and trash, and barrels and piles
of unidentifiable substances. The smell persisted. By Decem-
ber 1976, the town of Coventry reacted to pressure from
Columbia officials and demolished the building and cleaned
the area.

Lions Recycling Project

During the summer of 1968, the Windham Regional Planning
Agency became more active. They held a meeting in Colum-
bia to discuss our clean water and sewerage disposal con-
cerns.
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spring 1971, the “Friendship Circle,” a small group of
omen at the Congregational Church, and a few other inter-
ted recruits caught the enthusiasm of Dorothy Greenway

id became very interested in conservation. Their first big
oject was a glass recycling program and their first recycling
ly netted two tons of glass. (The next year three teenage
others helped with this project. It was estimated during that
ar twenty-seven tons of glass were collected!) Within two
onths the group convinced the Board of Seiectmen to call a
ecial town meeting to see if the town would establish a
nservation Commission. By mid-June the newly organized
oup was ready for work. They investigated a recent fish kill
Columbia Lake. Nature walks along brooks in the commu-
'y were organized. Town maps were prepared showing all
en space areas, wetlands and streambelt areas, and the
rious soil types. They met with the Planning and Zoning
immission (PZC) to urge adoption of regulations to protect
:se areas. With the PZC they sponsored a public meeting to
ar the planning director of the Windham Regional Planning
ency speak about preservation of open space. Trees on the
wn Green were painted with creosote to deter a severe
estation of gypsy moths which stripped many trees bare of
wves. The Commission visited a Horace W. Porter School in-
vice program to acquaint teachers with available environ-
:ntal materials. A conservation plan was formulated and a
50 Ford Foundation grant was secured to publish the plan
pampbhlet form and distribute to Columbia property owners.

e Conservation Commission became inactive during the

Iy 1980s, but in January 1984 the selectmen reactivated the
up with a full slate of seven members. One of the first

ions of the revitalized group was to recommend the estab-
wment of an Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Commis-

n. This group prepared regulations approved by the Con-
cticut Department of Environmental Protection and adopted
the Commission in 1989. These regulations require ap-

wal before the start of any work within seventy-five feet of
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any wetlands in town. In 1991 the town sanitarian was ap-
pointed the agent of the Commission.

During 1968 and 1969 a Columbia Historical Society commit-
tee recommended that the “Ravine,” the town-owned property
at the outlet of Columbia Lake, be designated as open space
and that the area be cared for and preserved. The property
covered about an acre and was deeded to the town by the
American Thread Co. when the lake was purchased. Arrange-
ments were made to purchase an additional approximately
thirty-six acres of adjoining land south of the Ravine for
$9,000. An undetermined amount on the north side was also
under negotiation. It soon became apparent that plans to
straighten the roadbed of Route 87 at that point would se-
verely impact this project. By summer 1969, the project was
tabled pending further information, and the abutting parcel of
land was no longer available as it had been sold. But a posi-
tive result of this effort was (at the request of the Columbia
Historical Society) a designation change on the Planning and
Zoning Commission map from “Mountain Reserve” to “Open
Space” — terminology necessary to receive any federal or
state open space funds.

In 1977 the owner of a large undeveloped area around Mono
Pond offered to sell the acreage to the town for recreation
purposes for three-quarters of the appraisal price of $900,000.
The Conservation Commission was in favor of the purchase,
but hoped-for federal assistance of up to fifty percent of the
purchase price, plus twenty-five percent from state funding,
was unavailable and the opportunity was missed. The area,
now called Island Woods, was then extensively developed
with residential housing. The town still hopes to negotiate
with the state and the present owners for purchase of the pond

and the remaining approximately 180 acres of undeveloped
land.



iree areas within the town are natural preserves and are
vned by Joshua’s Tract Conservation and Historic Trust. This
zanization was formed in 1966 and takes its name from
shua, son of Uncas, the Mohegan chief. Joshua bequeathed
ract of land in eastern Connecticut (which now comprises

2 ten towns in the Windham Regional Planning Agency

2a) to sixteen settlers from Norwich.

ie Utley Hill Preserve, located off Lake Road across from
Joni Road, was given to Joshua’s Trust in 1978 by George

d Patricia Becker. This Joshua’s Trust tract at one point

uts “Rec Field” off Hennequin Road. It consists of about 125
res and adjoins an additional approximately forty-seven

res purchased for $75,000 in 1987. These two tracts com-
ise a precious ecological and historical treasure. The upland
ramp which drains into Columbia Lake Brook and Columbia
ke constitutes a very large portion of the watershed area of

> lake. A century or more ago, the significant vertical drop
the stream was utilized for water power and the remains of
ar dams can still be seen. At least two mill sites existed

»ng the brook. One was probably a sawmill and another an
-and-down shingle mill which later was used as a grist mill.
e entire area is beautiful and a wonderful habitat for a

riety of wildlife.

two and one-half acre parcel was given to the trust by

nnie Goldberg and abuts the Hop River across from the
lumbia Shopping Center. This area is inaccessible except
water, but a Hop River excursion is recommended for even
vice canoeists.

iother preserve known as the Potter Meadow was the gift of
hiteall Properties, Ltd. to Joshua’s Trust in 1988. It consists
a flood plain at the confluence of the Willimantic and Ten
le Rivers at the point where Windham, New London and
lland Counties intersect. It is accessible from the parking lot
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of the Columbia Business Park off Cards Mill Road. Trails and
floating bridges were built by Boy Scouts. The area supports a
variety of wildlife. As early as the 1830s the land was used by
the Potter family to graze farm animals. Before then it was
owned by the Buckingham family. The Buckinghams were
among Columbia’s first settlers and were conservators of
Uncas, father of Joshua.
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Draw Fast But. . . Tree Was Loaded

Two Columbia men made the fastest draw in the woods when
they came upon a loaded tree. The men were sawing down a tree
when they struck metal. They stopped sawing and started digging

and found a cache of nine .22 caliber bullets in the tree trunk.

The pocket hiding the bullets was covered with dirt. The "quick

draw” of the saw paid off. Six of the bullets were “dead.” With

the other three, the tree might have shot back when the saw hit.

news item March 23, 1962
H O K K K ¥ ¥ ok ¥

A trip down memory lane would surely be incomplete if our
friendly traveling vendors of the *50s and “60s were omitted.
How often did the Good Humor or A & W truck reach the ears
of our suddenly hungry youngsters? How convenient it was to
enjoy fresh bread and pastries when the Viking or Bond Bread
vehicles appeared in our driveways! Pickup trucks or vans
bearing vegetables, meat and fish were eagerly awaited by
residents, eliminating many a trip to the local store. Today, the
sole survivor of those cherished days is Mountain Dairy, which
after forty-five years, still makes twice-weekly deliveries in
Columbia.



OUTSIDE INFLUENCES

Storms

We all know if you dislike New England weather, you only
have to “wait a minute.” In January 1967, Columbia had a
reported record-breaking temperature of 65 degrees that
orought snowdrop flowers into bloom! Two years later, during
1 post-Christmas storm that dropped twelve inches of snow on
‘he town, an ice-covered (but still singing) bluebird was found
and brought inside to thaw out in its rescuer’s Christmas tree!

Hurricane “Carol” blew across Long Island and New England
n August 1954, killing sixty people and injuring about a
housand. Columbia suffered considerable damage to trees,
yower lines and at least one home. A building at “firemen’s
ield” was demolished, a newly built ten-acre pond on Route
»6 overflowed and water cascaded over a small dam.

\fter a summer of drought and heat waves, August 1955
yrought hurricane “Diane” hard on the heels of her somewhat
esser sister “Connie.” “Diane” gathered momentum for two
veeks, wandering up the east coast of the United States caus-
ng about 400 deaths. She dumped 12.7 inches of rain on
-onnecticut in a twenty-four hour period on August 19, caus-
ng widespread flooding. Locally, severe flooding occurred
tlong Route 6 and the Hop River in Columbia. Businesses, a
racant home and a seasonal cottage were inundated — at one
ime by more than six feet of water.

{urricane “Donna” came along in 1960, but caused little
lamage except to trees. Road crews and firemen were kept
‘ery busy in the spring of 1970 when roads and cellars were
looded during very heavy rains. A guard dog at Connecticut
\uto Sales was rescued by firemen from the rising water of the
1op River.
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The late seventies saw very diverse weather. Hurricane “Belle”
blew in during August 1976 causing about 500 power out-
ages. The gate in the Columbia Lake dam was opened as a
precaution. The following May, when lilacs and apple trees
were in full bloom, two to three inches of snow dropped on
our town, weighing down the fully leafed trees! Winter storm
“Larry” arrived in January 1978, shutting down much of the
state, collapsing the roof of the newly-built Civic Center in
Hartford and keeping crews busy clearing roads of snow.
Locally, the fire marshal checked the roof of the Horace W.
Porter School and was satisfied the school could be safely
reopened.

In June 1982 we saw rain — so much that the water crested
twenty inches over the spillway at the dam and volunteers had
to be called out to help put sandbags in place. Also, a section
of Jones Road washed out.

In fall 1985 Hurricane “Gloria” caused damage to power lines
and trees and blew a bumper crop of acorns to the ground.

War

After World War |1 the effects of war and threat of war contin-
ued to be feltin Columbia as well as in the rest of our country.

In 1950 the United States was drawn into the Korean conflict,
and our military units fought there until war ended in 1953.
According to a plaque presented to the town in 1974 and
displayed in the Town Hall, thirty-three Columbia residents
served their country during the Korean War,

The Vietnam War lasted an interminable fourteen years —

from 1961 to 1975. The names of twenty-seven men and one
woman military nurse appear on the Vietnam honor roll in the
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own Hall. Later it was determined eighteen additional names
ere inadvertently omitted and should be added. In Septem-
2r 1968 the Columbia Chapter of the American Red Cross

:nt a shipment of “Santa Claus Bags” to American servicemen
| Vietnam.

t least eight Columbia men and women served in the Persian
ulf War in 1991.

World War Il Memorial dedicated

ter World War Il, a local civil defense program planned

fety measures applicable at the home front in the event of an
rergency. Yearly air raid alerts were held until about 1961.
early July 1957 Columbia participated in a two-day national

rilian defense test — “Operation Alert.” A control center

1s set up at Yeomans Hall. Key personnel were to report to

> control center at the start of the “take cover” alert, when
traffic was stopped for thirteen minutes.
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Public buildings and private homes were surveyed during the
Cold War for possible use as nuclear fall-out shelters. Local
civil defense directors and school administrators were invited
to attend a workshop on the implementation of a state survival
plan. School systems were required to prepare emergency
plans for natural or man-made disasters and civil defense
alerts were routinely practiced.

From 1961 and for more than thirty years, John Sullivan
served as civil defense director. During his long service Mr.
Sullivan, a ham radio operator and member of the American
Radio Relay League, was instrumental in organizing the Radio
Amateur Civil Emergency Service (RACES), an emergency
radio communications network. These capable amateur radio
operators participated in periodic tests of equipment and skills
while encamped on Post Hill, Columbia’s highest elevation.
The June 1971 nationwide short-wave exercises continued for
a twenty-seven hour period. The following June three com-
plete radio stations were set up to participate in what was then
called the world’s largest test of non-commercial emergency
communications.

Improved Telephone Service

On June 2, 1954, the cornerstone for Columbia’s very own
telephone building on Route 66 was laid. It would house dial
switching equipment. Sealed into a special copper box and
mortared into the cornerstone by Selectman Clair Robinson
were copies of area newspapers, a telephone directory and
other documents of interest. Mr. Robinson reminisced that
when he was a child, all telephones in Hebron and Columbia
were on the same line with three telephones in each town.
Telephones in Columbia were located in George Fuller’s post
office, the home of Mary Yeomans and the Robinson home.
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At 7:00 on a Sunday morning in early December 1954, the
cable was cut separating the Columbia “ACademy” office from
the Willimantic “HArrison” office, and Mr. Robinson dialed
the first call to open the new system. Approximately seven
hundred telephones were then controlled from the new office,
including private, two-party and four-party lines.

Further improvements were made in 1960 after new equip-
ment was installed in the local telephone building, enabling
Columbia to become a completely separate exchange. An
snlarged local calling area and reduced rates to nearby ex-
hanges now became possible.

Juring 1989 the enhanced 911 emergency telephone system
~vent into effect for Columbia, enabling residents to obtain

juick and efficient assistance using the national emergency
wumber.

f we reflect on the growth of communications technology
»ver these past forty years, we could ponder the wonders that
ie beyond our present portable phones, cellular phones,
lirect long-distance dialing and machines that answer and
ake messages for us!

dectricity

\ century ago most sources of power came from the fuel that
Irove engines or lit lamps, the rushing water that drove mill
vheels, and the muscles of work animals or a person’s own
rack.

'oday most of Columbia’s electrical power is distributed
rough the Northeast Utilities electrical substation at the
orner of Route 87 and Szegda Road. In 1990 there were
,769 metered customers in Columbia.
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Underground electrical installations started in the late 1960s
and included a half dozen or fewer homes. After 1972 most
new housing developments were built with underground
installation.

A 345,000-volt electrical transmission line traverses Columbia
from east to northwest. This line carries power from the Mill-
stone plant in Waterford to the electrical complex on Silver
Lane in Manchester.
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A motorcycle skidded under a cow,

As a motorcyclist neared the top of a knoll on Flanders Road, he
saw a herd of cows crossing the road in front of him. In an
attempt to avoid the herd, he tipped his vehicle which skidded
between the cow’s legs. The rider suffered eye injuries. No one
was sure what happened to the cow.

news item
skeo3k sk 3k sk e sk sk ok

Between the state and the town, the cart got placed firmly before
the horse in the summer of 1978.

What happened is that federal money, and apparently state
highway crews, were expended on painting the yellow stripes on
town secondary roads. That would have been very nice, except
that the town roads were scheduled to be tarred the first of the
next month, a job that eliminated the new road stripes.

news item July 20, 1978

28
i~
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ORGANIZATIONS

1 contrast to the earlier years of the 1900s when Columbia
ad relatively few, today the town has a variety of organiza-
ons and community activities. This could be explained by

1e town’s more recent growth and development resulting in a
reater number of people with more diversified backgrounds,
ilents and interests.

A busy Place most every Night

merican Red Cross

ways alert to the needs of the community, the Columbia
1apter of the American Red Cross served the people of
>lumbia for seventy-two years. Originating in 1917, the
ganization consisted totally of volunteers who met annually
Yeomans Hall to elect officers and deliver reports of chapter
tivities performed during the year,
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In 1989 the Columbia Chapter, which also included the towns
of Hebron and Andover, merged with the long-established
Willimantic group, and the Greater Willimantic Chapter of the
American Red Cross was born. It is this philanthropic group
which today makes itself available to Columbia residents
through its office in Willimantic.

Services of the Red Cross include: disaster relief; community
education; assistance to military families; international tracing
of family members; classes in swimming, first aid, CPR and
water safety; blood drives; and AIDS prevention and aware-
ness information.

Bicentennial Commission

Columbia’s participation in the American Revolution Bicen-
tennial celebration was coordinated by the seven-member
Bicentennial Commission. The Commission invited represen-
tatives from all town organizations to join with them to plan
and oversee a variety of activities over a three-year period.
From 1973 to 1976 the number of events continued to in-
crease, culminating in a week-long celebration in June 1976.

In 1974, 1975 and 1976, the week of June 10 was designated
as “Bicentennial Week.” Bicentennial Week 1974 included
the announcement of the Bicentennial Seal contest. Chosen
from many entries was Barney Spector’s design depicting
Columbia Lake and Moor’s Indian School. This seal became
the official town seal and is still used today on all official
documents and publications.

Bicentennial Week 1975 gave Columbia residents several
opportunities to celebrate together. Whether it was attending a
band concert on the Green, watching a craft demonstration or
enjoying an old-fashioned beanhole supper, almost everyone
found a way to take part in the festivities.
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One of the largest parades ever held in Columbia was the
“limax of the 1976 Bicentennial Week. Most local organiza-
ions, as well as those from surrounding towns, sponsored
loats, bands or marchers.

Ine of the most memorable events was the 1976 “melting
»ot-luck supper.” The supper honored “twentieth century
dilgrims” — those Columbia residents of foreign birth. Each
serson attending brought a native dish. Many dressed in
1ative costumes, while others entertained with native dances,
ongs and music.

on July 4, 1976, residents of Columbia gathered on the Town
areen to join with citizens all over the country in one simulta-
1eous event. At exactly twelve noon, everyone rang bells,
slew whistles or banged on pans to celebrate the birth of our
1ation.

Other Bicentennial activities included an old house tour
featuring a progressive dinner, colonial crafts, adult education
classes, a flag display and many, many picnics and suppers.

Funds were made available to restore the Moor’s Indian Char-
ity School. The Bicentennial Commission oversaw the project.
Later the town gave the Historical Society the responsibility for
maintaining the school.

As one of their contributions to the celebrations, the Columbia
Historical Society sponsored the publication of School Memo-
ries 1732-1948. This book describes education in Columbia
during the era of the one-room schools.

Boy Scouts of America

Scouting has had a strong influence on our young people over
the years. Many great experiences and memories resulted from
Scouting’s character development, citizenship training and
personal fitness programs for both boys and adults. Numerous
service projects contributed to the town, including holiday
parades, glass recycling, collections for the needy and mark-
ing trails in the Joshua Trust tracts. At least thirty young men
have achieved the rank of Eagle Scout, including the five
brothers of the Clarence Grant family — a local Scout council
record. The Columbia Boy Scout troops have been well repre-
sented at various district and council activities, taking home
far more than their share of honors and awards. Their perfor-
mance can be attributed to the many adults who dedicated
their time to lead young people along the path to adulthood.




Family of Eagle Scouts
The Grant Family

In 1946 Dr. Ralph Wolmer, President of the Parent Teacher
Association, started a Cub Scout program in Columbia. Mem-
vership has fluctuated from a low of seven Cubs in 1981 to a
nigh of seventy-six Cubs and Tiger Cubs in 1992. In 1975 the
Columbia Volunteer Fire Department assumed the charter for
ub Scout Pack 62, and in 1977 it was passed to the Knights
>f Columbus. In 1987 the Lions Club became the chartered

>rganization, now serving both the Cub Scouts and Boy
couts in town,

3oy Scout Troop 62 was originally chartered to the Parent
‘eacher Association in December 1942. For fifteen years
coutmaster Wilbur Fletcher introduced the young men of
“olumbia to the great world out-of-doors through the Boy
cout program. Fletcher also oversaw an Exploring program

or older Scouts during all the 1950s. Membership in the troop
anged in size from eight Scouts in 1948 to sixty Scouts and
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Explorers in 1959. In fact, Troop 62 became so large it was
necessary to form a second troop in 1959. Among the many
memorable outings and expeditions over the years, the high-
light must be winning first place in competition with 60,000
other Scouts, in the monkey bridge-building competition at
the 1960 National Scout Jamboree in Colorado Springs, Colo-
rado. In 1965 the Lions Club assumed the responsibility of
being the chartered organization. Troop 62 continued its
strong traditions until March 1979. Declining enrollment
caused it to cease operation and merge with Troop 162.

Through the years Boy Scout Troop 162 had a very active
outdoor program that included major canoeing and mountain-
climbing treks all over New England. Membership in the troop
fluctuated from a low of nine Scouts in 1983 to a high of forty-
two in 1968 and 1969. In 1973 Scoutmaster Herbert Winkler
led a contingent of Scouts to the National Scout Jamboree at
Morraine State Park in Pennsylvania, where they joined with
approximately 30,000 other Scouts for a week of Scouting
adventures — and rain. After several years of planning and
fundraising, Scoutmaster Morris Stewart led an expedition of
older Scouts to the Philmont Scout Ranch in Cimmaron, New
Mexico, where they hiked the Sangre de Cristo mountains for
ten days.

The Canoe Club

The Columbia Canoe Club was organized in 1961 under the
leadership and coaching of Delthena “Pat” Murphy. During

the 1960s it participated in and sponsored a number of local
and national regattas. Early morning and late evening, mem-
bers practiced daily in kayaks and canoes, pacing to the call

of Pat’s “Stroke, stroke.” They collected bottles and papers to
purchase the many elegant craft of their fleet.
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Chapel on the Green Gallery
Tolland County’s only professional Art Gallery

Other events sponsored by the Council include the Summer
Concert Series, a Summer Music Theatre for children and
youth and organized trips to places of cultural interest or
performing arts events. The Council also presents scholarships
and awards to Columbia students in the performing and cre-
ative arts.

4-H Clubs

During the 1950s and 1960s many Columbia 4-H clubs gave
boys and girls opportunities to participate in a variety of
projects such as gardening, woodworking, cooking, sewing
and dairying.
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In 1976 a group of 4-Hers added crafts to their traditional 4-H
projects. As part of this project, they organized and sponsored
an annual Festival on the Green. Columbia craftsmen and
gardeners were invited to set up tables on the Green to display
and sell their handiwork. Today the Festival on the Green
continues under the sponsorship of the Columbia Historical
Society.

The Garden Club

The Columbia Garden Club was organized in 1987 to foster
local interest in home gardens, annuals, perennials and land-
scaping. Among its activities are several annual community
projects which include planting around the two War Memori-
als on the Green and a Christmas decorating contest. The
group also sponsors trips to special gardens and nature pre-
serves.

The Girl Scouts

The Girl Scout movement in Columbia began in 1938 when
Leona Wolmer, assisted by Jean Natsch, organized the first
troop. From its modest beginning, members increased through
the years to well over one hundred girls participating in the
Scouting program today.

Jean Natsch’s many years as leader of Girl Scout activities

constitute an important part of this organization’s history. Her
dedicated service was honored by the town in 1974, when a
special “Jean Natsch Day” was designated. Five years later, a
ceremony was held when she was awarded a pin in honor of

. her fifty years in Girl Scouting.

The Girl Scout troops of the 1950s were divided into Brown-
ies, Juniors, Seniors and Cadette Scouts. All units were mem-
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bers of the Eastern Connecticut Girl Scout Council. Weekly
troop meetings were held in Yeomans Hall.

In the 1970s Girl Scouting was updated. Nationally, the Girl
Scout Laws and promise were revised in 1972, resulting in a
change in programming. Keeping to the motto “Be Prepared,”
the local troops reached out more to ethnic and minority

Jroups. International presentations were held each February to
2mphasize this theme.

EER

A Cup of Tea with the Girl Scouts

Juring the bicentennial years, the troops carried out a special
roject of learning colonial crafts, while the older girls took
1any backpacking trips to the Adirondacks. Other programs
1cluded a water conservation unit, a folk dance festival with
rirteen troops from area towns participating, blazing a nature
ail in the Recreation Field area and enjoying some shared
ctivities with the Boy Scouts. The highest award at that time
ras the Curved Bar, which remained a goal yet to be

chieved by Columbia Scouts.

) 1'992 approximately 120 Girl Scouts from Columbia were
:gistered at the Connecticut Trails Council office in North
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Haven. Each of the seven local troops operates independently.
Weekly meetings are still held at Yeomans Hall, and all Scouts
join together at a closing ceremony in the spring when Scouts
“fly up” to the next level. International programs have been
expanded into “Thinking Days.” Columbia activities are
focused on cookie sales, participation in the Festival on the
Green, parades, summer attendance at Camp Laurel in Leba-
non, and earning awards in pursuit of the coveted Gold
Award.

Supervision of Columbia’s Scouts and the most recently
formed “Daisy” troop is now under the leadership of the
Jonathan Trumbull Service Unit of Lebanon and Columbia. A
Christmas party and an annual camporee are held jointly by
Columbia and Lebanon Girl Scouts.

Grange #131

The Grange is a fraternal organization that evolved out of the
many farmers’ clubs organized after the Civil War. It is na-
tional (with state and local chapters) and offers members
opportunities for socialization, entertainment and community
service. The progression of attainable degrees and the secrecy
of the ritual contribute to the status of being a Granger.

Columbia Grange #131 was organized at a meeting held at
Bascom Hall (today’s Landmark) in 1892 and was a major
local organization through the World War Il era. The Colum-
bia Grange sponsored scholastic awards, gave financial assis-
tance to local disaster victims and donated many gifts, includ-
ing a new stage curtain for Yeomans Hall. Columbia has
enjoyed many imaginative programs through the years. Pic-
nics, musical programs, three-act plays, a mock trial, a wed-
ding gown pageant and a fiftieth anniversary production of
the first local Grange meeting were created and produced by a
succession of local Grange Lecturers.
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Crange #131
Nearly 100 Years of Service

A diminished local focus on agriculture and the competition
of other activities took their toll on local Grange membership
a.nd attendance. It became increasingly difficult to meet Na-
tional Grange-mandated quorum requirements. Sadly, on
January 15, 1992, less than two months shy of its one hun-
dredth anniversary, the Charter of Columbia Grange #1371 was

revoked. Plans for the anticipated anniversary celebration had
nowhere to go.

The Historical Society

N 1966 a small group of interested residents organized as the
Tc:-Jumbia Historical Society — its principal goal the restora-
ion and maintenance of Moor’s Indian Charity School. Since
hen many timely exhibits and programs were held in the

T

Indian School on holidays and during special town events,
such as the Festival on the Green. In addition a collection of
Columbia artifacts and memorabilia is maintained and pre-
served there. During the year Historical Society meetings
encourage historical research through programs and speakers
on various subjects.

They also sponsored the writing and printing of several stud-
ies. These include School Memories 1732-1948, a history of
the town’s one-room schools, and Columbia Libraries 100th
Anniversary 1883-1983. The Society financed a reprint of The
Story of Columbia, written in 1954 by the Women’s Guild of
the Congregational Church and sponsored the writing and
printing of this volume, The Story of Columbia Continues ... .

In 1982 when the mechanism of the original dam gate at
Columbia Lake was restored, the Society presented a plaque
dedicated to the former keepers of the dam. A major history
preservation project, being conducted by the Oral History
Committee of the Society, is the taping of interviews with
Columbia people recalling their experiences of earlier days in
town.

Homemakers Extension Groups

Under the aegis of the Extension Service at the Tolland County
Agricultural Center (TAC), three Columbia groups formed
dedicated to furthering homemaking skills — the Columbia
Homemakers, the Calicoes and the Villagers. Leadership
training was given at TAC headquarters and those skills were
brought to local groups who met in private homes. Sewing,
reupholstering, canning and quilting were studied. Many were
group members for thirty or more years, enjoying the compan-
ionship of friends while learning the homemaking arts. Today

two groups remain, although they are no longer affiliated with
TAC.
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The Lions Club

The Columbia Lions Club was organized in August 1955
when the twenty-one original members and their guests met at
he Willimantic Country Club to receive their Charter. William
>. Burnham provided the inspiration for starting the club and
erved as the first president. The club’s gong and gavel were
resented by the Lebanon Lions who, with the Willimantic
-ions, acted as the club’s sponsors.

"he club is part of Lions International. Its name (Liberty,
ntelligence, Our Nation’s Safety) and motto, “We Serve,”
ndicate its emphasis on service. Fellowship, locally as well as
vorld-wide, is also an important factor. Vision conservation is
- particular focus of all Lions Clubs. The local club conducts
nnual eye research fund drives, sponsors glaucoma screening

nd offers financial assistance for vision care in cases of local
eed.

\mong the many community projects sponsored by the Lions
re the annual good citizenship and outstanding athlete
wards to graduates of Horace W. Porter School. They have
onated an audiometer to the school. The club has presented
service truck, an ice rescue sled and Scott Air Packs to the
olumbia Volunteer Fire Department. They built a skating rink
nd the William “Buzz” Burnham Pavilion at the Columbia
ecreation Area. They awarded a $5,000 grant to the com-
uter program of the Saxton B. Little Free Library. To enhance
'e attractiveness of the Green, they planted rows of maple
ees and donated the gazebo, the lighted flagpole at the
/orld War Il Memorial, outdoor benches and the landscaping
the Meeting Place. The club built the original beach house

the Community Beach and purchased tables for Yeomans
all.

1e Lions fund their various projects by sponsoring pancake
eakfasts, barbecues, auctions and entertainments.
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Independence Day Parade

For more than thirty years, Columbia has celebrated the
Fourth of July with a community parade sponsored and orga-
nized by the Lions Club.

The Recreation Council

From the time of its organization in 1946, the Recreation
Council was a vital part of the community life. Its goal is “to
promote and sponsor recreational activities for the people of
Columbia.” In a report given at its twentieth anniversary
observance it was noted sixteen different types of recreational
programs were in operation at that time.

What started as weekly square dances for teen-agers expanded
to programs of softball, baseball, hobby shows, Fourth of July
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parades, “Rec” nights at the high school and town hall, a
photography club, skiing, archery, hockey, canoeing, art
courses, swimming lessons, ballroom dancing, Christmas tree
lighting and caroling at the Green — and more!

Slow Dancing at “Rec” Council Social

Two members who devoted many years of service to the
earlier days of the Council were Dr. Ralph Wolmer, founder of
the organization, who served for twenty-four years on the
Council, and Jean Natsch, who was secretary for thirty years.

Today the Council sponsors both adult and youth programs,
Open men’s basketball takes place in the school gym on
Monday evenings and a Sunday evening group plays adult
solleyball. The youth program offers fall soccer for boys and
jirls, basketball and baseball (in steps of T-ball, Farm Team,
[ittle League, Pony and Colt teams). At the end of each sum-
ner since 1990 they have offered “Rec Week,” a day camp of
‘arious activities for children three through ten.
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Starting in 1982, soccer camp is held in the fields at Recre-
ation Park, culminating in the Nassiff Columbus Day Soccer
Tournament. This contest started as a one-day event with
twenty-four teams participating and has grown to several days,
with 116 area teams competing.

A Champion Pony League Team — 1976

The Retirees’ Leisure Club

The Columbia Retirees’ Leisure Club was organized in 1979 to
provide a means of social and recreational life for seniors. It is
open to all Columbia residents at least sixty years old.

The semi-monthly meetings are social hours where members
can share activities and conversation. The club sponsors field
trips throughout the year to places of seasonal or scenic inter-
est. A special annual Christmas program is held and includes
dinner and entertainment.
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The club’s programs feature speakers on health-related topics.
They also sponsor flu shots and blood pressure clinics.

The Volunteer Fire Department

The Columbia Volunteer Fire Department, organized in 1947,
has delivered forty-five years of outstanding volunteer protec-
lion and security for the residents of Columbia.

Constructed in 1947, the original firehouse on Route 66 was
2nlarged twice. The 1967 and 1972 additions provided more
space for emergency equipment, as well as kitchen, dining
‘oom and meeting hall facilities.

As the local area serviced by the fire department grew, equip-
nent was replaced and updated. Columbia now has an im-
ressive fleet of six vehicles including three engine tanks, a
ervice truck, an ambulance and a rescue truck. With the
icquisition of the ambulance, the town discontinued its mem-
srership in the Inter-County Ambulance Association and en-
ered into an agreement with the fire department to provide

he community with emergency service. All such calls are now

:andled by specially trained Emergency Medical Technicians
EMTs).

1 1969 the Columbia Volunteer Fire Department transferred
‘om its Tolland Mutual Aid System affiliation to the
Villimantic area switchboard. When the fire alarm sounds,
1e firemen respond promptly — all active members are
quipped with pagers for instant notification.

he department holds frequent drills in methods of fire-fight-
1g and rescue work for its members. Additionally, a trained

orps of Fire Police controls traffic at calls where such protec-
on is needed.
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Forty-five Years of Service

Other activities of the firemen were and are many and varied.
In the late 1950s and early 1960s the Annual Fair was the
social event of the summer season and a major fund-raising
activity for the community. The firemen provided entertain-
ment for the children of Columbia by holding Easter Egg Hunts
and Halloween and Christmas parties. Instructional open
houses are held at the fire station for school children in the
lower grades. The Christmas season is enhanced when “jolly
old Santa” climbs atop a fire truck and visits town shut-ins.

From 1964 to 1979 an active Women'’s Auxiliary aided the

department financially. In situations involving long hours of
fire-fighting or prolonged emergency calls, refreshments for
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the firemen were provided by the group. Due to a lack of
active participants the Auxiliary eventually disbanded, but
‘hose remaining were rewarded with honorary memberships
in the Volunteer Fire Department.

Admission to the Columbia Volunteer Fire Department was
>pened to women in 1975. The current membership reports
106 men and six women on its roster — trained, equipped,
and ready to respond when catastrophe strikes.

What goes “Beep, beep, beep” at 5:00 am at the Porter
School? For a month, the school principal, fire chief, a State
police officer, the Board of Education chairman and others
pondered the question. Theories considered and rejected were
a device on the school boilers, the school fire alarm system,
some sort of signal at the firehouse, a Volkswagen horn, a
particular bird scratching his feet while perched on a TV
antenna and the mating call of the woodcock. After a month
of trying to track down the sound, it was finally determined to
be a nearby neighbor’s snooze alarm which went off every
morning at 5:00 am.

news items April 7 & May 3, 1967

7
=

s sl

¢ Y e ae M 32
7in Fin

i i i i

2l
“in
L}

()

L}

()
e
Y

=t
i

When a fire broke out at 8:20 one morning, two volunteer
firemen answered the call. It was a car fire, so the two men
had jumped quickly into the pumper, driving less than a mile
in response to the alarm. When they arrived, they looked in
the truck and found no hose, no ax, no pick or shovel — no
equipment whatsoever!!! All the two could do was watch!
Mother Hubbard had nothing on these two men. Footnote:
That's all anyone could have done — the car was too far gone
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